ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 1, 2006
1:43 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senat or Lyda G een
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Donny O son

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Gary W/ ken, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 281
"An Act relating to interdistrict operation of public schools
relating to enrollnment of students by school districts and
regi onal educational attendance areas; and relating to charter
school s and correspondence prograns.”

HEARD AND HELD

SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 199
"An Act relating to public school funding for a prohibition on
the sale of food and beverages of mnimal nutritional value in
schools and for placing restrictions on the use of vending
machines in public schools; and providing for an effective
date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 162

"An Act relating to nonitoring and reporting of student
di scipline and safety, of student health pertaining to height,
nutrition, and physical activity, of the percentage of the
| egislative body with a body mass index that exceeds 25.0, and
of state capitol vending nmachine profits; requiring schools to
report school health status and policy, the percentage of
students that are overweight and at risk of being overweight,
and profits from vending machines; and requiring the eval uation
of health education progranms on the basis of health reports and
screening."

Bl LL HEARI NG CANCELED

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- March 1, 2006



BILL: SB 281

SHORT TI TLE: SCHOCL DI ST. ENROLLMENT SHARI NG CORRESPON

SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DYSON

02/ 13/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 06 (S) HES, FIN

03/ 01/ 06 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 199

SHORT TITLE: SCHOOL NUTRI TI ON SUPPORT GRANTS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) ELTON

05/ 09/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
05/ 09/ 05 (S) HES, FIN

02/ 03/ 06 (S) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRALS
02/ 03/ 06 (S) HES, FIN

03/ 01/ 06 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Wes Keller, Staff

to Senator Fred Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 281.

Eddy Jeans, Director

School Fi nance

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

801 West 10th Street.

Juneau, AK 99801-1894

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Had no position yet on SB 281.

Carl Rose, Executive D rector

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards

1111 West 9th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Had no position on SB 281.

Lee Young, Principal

Connecti ons

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School s

Sol dot na, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 281.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 1,

2006



Jesse Kiehl, Staff

to Senator Kim Elton

Al aska State Legislature
Al aska State Capitol
Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions on SSSB 199.

Dave Jones, Director of Finance

Kodi ak | sl and Borough School District

722 M1l Bay Road

Kodi ak, AK 99615

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SSSB 199.

Suzanne Meunier, Director of Advocacy
Anerican Heart Associ ation
Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SSSB 199.

Tamry Green, Section Chief

Chroni c Di sease Prevention and Health Pronotion
Di vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SSSB 199.

Peggy Cowan, Superi ntendent

Juneau Bor ough School s

10014 Crazy Horse Drive

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of
suggest ed a change.

Bar bara Thonpson, Director

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent
801 West 10th Street, Suite 200

Juneau, AK 99801

SSSB 199 and

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: I ntroduced Ms. Goade during hearing on

SSSB 199.

Stacy Goade, School Food Coordi nat or

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent
801 West 10th Street, Suite 200

Juneau, AK 99801

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on
suggested a change.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3-

SSSB 199 and

March 1, 2006



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Committee neeting to order at 1:43:22 PM
Present were Senators Lyda Geen, Kim Elton, Donny d son and
Chair Fred Dyson

"#SB281
SB 281- SCHOOL DI ST. ENRCLLMENT SHARI NG CORRESPONDENCE

CHAI R DYSON announced SB 281 to be up for consideration. As the
sponsor, he invited M. Keller to present the bill.

1:44:11 PM

WES KELLER, Staff to Senator Fred Dyson, Al aska State
Legi slature, explained that SB 281 authorizes school districts
to design, pronote and adm nister statew de distance-I|earning
programs; it makes explicit what is inplied, since no existing
| aw prohibits a school district fromenrolling students from any
area of Alaska; it allows contractual agreenents - already
allowed in statute - between school districts; and it adds a new
definition of correspondence prograns, currently defined in
regulation only, by defining a program in terns of whether it
takes on the daily, routine care of children.

He requested that the Senate Finance Conmttee deal wth
financial inplications, noting he'd asked the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED) to assist wth wording.
M. Keller said state funding would follow the student to the
new district, as wuld federal inpact aid; however, |ocal
contributions would not, maintaining the status quo.

CHAIR DYSON noved to adopt the proposed CS, Version F[24-
LS1430\F, M schel, 2/15/06] as the working docunent. W t hout
obj ection, Version F was before the conmttee.

MR. KELLER pointed out that SB 281 presses one question: How
will district costs be factored into the funding fornmula for
non- correspondence students that enroll in another district if
it happens nore often because of this |egislation? Suggesting
it's an issue for the Senate Finance Conmittee, he added, "I
think answering this question in open discussion will clarify
things and be helpful to us as far as legislative intent." He
said SB 281 doesn't propose or pronpote any particular program
doesn't inpose mandates and introduces no new |egislative

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2006



intent. He asserted that it elevates the inportance of district
boundary lines because it's a statement of confidence in |oca
school districts.

He infornmed nenbers that technology - which makes the inpacts of

di stance disappear - drives SB 281. Rel ating persona
background, M. Keller said he has new hope for Alaska's K-12
educati on. He discussed a "virtual box" designed for a child,

based on the child s needs and current |evel, an individual
learning plan, state standards and so forth; this would
facilitate per sonal t eacher - st udent and t eacher -t eacher
conmuni cation never before avail able. M. Keller elaborated,
suggesting security neasures already exist, for exanple, and
saying small communities can take advantage of expertise from
peopl e outside the community.

He expressed enthusiasm for education technol ogy and highlighted
the following nyths: technol ogy renoves teachers from the
equation; technology usage only occurs between teachers and
students, not anong students; distance technology is primarily
for correspondence schools or home schooling; teachers need deep
technol ogi cal knowl edge to be effective; kids don't have the
ability to take care of technological hardware such as | aptops;
technol ogy for education is expensive, with no cost savings; and
accurate predictions can not be made about future technol ogy and
sof t war e. M. Keller concluded by citing a 2003 census that
found three out of four Al askan fam lies have conmputers - which
puts Al aska near the top - and that 68.5 percent of Al askans use
the Internet.

2:00: 11 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked whether protections should be included to
keep one school district from losing students to another,
causing the school to fall bel ow the m ni mum nunber of students.

MR. KELLER suggested that was for legislators to answer. He
offered his opinion, however, that if a local school district
had the best situation to attract its own students with its own
prograns, then nothing had to be done.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether Section 1 allowed sonething new to
happen so one district could create a charter school in another
district.

MR. KELLER agreed it wasn't happening already, but said he
wasn't sure it was illegal

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2006



SENATOR ELTON expressed interest in having the conmttee discuss
it, since it wuld be a significant shift and he didn't
understand all the ramfications.

SENATOR OLSON asked about the difference between Version G the
original bill, and Version F

2:02: 32 PM

MR. KELLER explained that the first version didn't specify that
districts could make contractual agreenents with each other. In
many renote |ocations, the school building is the center for
culture in the conmmunity. A school that wasn't happy wth its
teachers that cone and go from the comunity m ght be eager to
participate in a program offered by another district and yet
still use the building. This would allow such agreenents.

CHAI R DYSON added an exanpl e: Hope, a small community south of
his district, has just 10 students, but a nice school built for
60. If the nunber fell below the threshold of 10, the [ ocal
district or school could contract with the Anchorage or Kena

school district to have a distance-delivery charter schoo

there, using the building and providing a teacher's aide as a
monitor and proctor in the classroom and/or providing support
for students with disabilities. Some districts conduct their
adm ni stration from Anchorage already, and Chair Dyson suggested
this would allow small schools and districts to take advantage
of anot her district's economes of scale or to work
col | aboratively.

He highlighted the problem of a small high school trying to
provide a variety of classes and experiences to students. A
virtual school could conbine three students in one village who
wanted to learn Russian, aviation or nedical technology, for
exanpl e, with dozens of other students in schools throughout the
area or the state; it would be taught by highly qualified
teachers from another |ocale. Chair Dyson related his
understanding that all the bill's |anguage is perm ssive.

MR. KELLER requested that the |legislation be noved forward

unl ess sone questions couldn't be answered. Regar di ng Senat or
Elton's earlier question, he said charter schools have another
"l ayer": the state board, which can approve or disapprove a

deci sion that has been made at the local district |evel.

CHAI R DYSON opened public testinony.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2006



2:07:57 PM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance, Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent, informed nenbers that DEED hadn't taken a

position on the bill yet, mainly because of |ack of opportunity
for feedback from the state Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent . Concurring that many itens in the bill are in

statute, he noted, for exanple, that AS 14.14.110 has the title
"Cooperation with other districts.”

He conjectured that some concerns of the state board m ght
relate to Section 1, which allows a district to create a charter
school to operate in another school district, and to Section 3,

which allows a local school board to establish a school in
anot her district. M. Jeans pointed out that children cross
boundaries now, with funding going to the district where the
children actually attend school. He gave exanples. |In response

to Chair Dyson, he clarified that under Section 1, subsection
(d), it appears a local school board could establish a charter
school outside the district boundaries with approval of the
state board, but w thout consent of the other school board - a
substantial change. He surmsed, at mnimum that the state
board would want both |ocal school boards to be a party to such
a charter.

2:12: 20 PM

MR. JEANS, in further response, said he believes the state board
will nmeet March 17; he covers current |egislation during such
meetings and will ensure this is before the board. In response
to Senator Oson regarding the bill's necessity, M. Jeans
mentioned that at Jleast the existing cooperation conponent
between districts is clearly allowed by statute. In further
response, he explained that he would present the bill to the

state board to receive feedback, but would also point out that,
for this particular section, current statute already addresses
t he cooperative nature between districts.

2:14:41 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked M. Jeans whether he believes the present |aw
allows a district "on invitation, with agreenent” to establish a

new charter school in another district.

MR. JEANS answered that it hadn't happened yet, other than with
the Delta Cyber School, which was approved as a charter school

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2006



serves students statewide via the Internet and is funded as a
correspondence program

CHAIR DYSON indicated Version F differs from current law in
allowing a charter school to operate specifically w thin another
district. He proposed getting a legal opinion as to whether
addi tional authorization is needed beyond existing statute.

MR. JEANS, in response to Senator Elton, said he reads
Section 3, paragraph (1), to say a district can establish a
brick-and-nmortar school in another district without the second
district's approval.

CHAIR DYSON surmsed the drafter thought the approval of the
state board provided a safeguard. He asked about options if a
recalcitrant school district at some point isn't doing what is
necessary.

SENATOR ELTON renmarked that it's an interesting point, but said
he reads Section 1 as being different from Section 3. Section 1
provides that the state board would be involved in decisions,
but Section 3 is just a |ocal response.

MR. JEANS noted that Section 1 anends the charter school
| egi sl ation, which already has a state board approval conponent.
Section 3 anends AS 14.14, adding a new subsection that deals
wi th operations of districts.

MR. KELLER added that he couldn't imagine a school district
going out and building a school in a rural area. He reported
t hat one big <concern he has heard from districts 1is
adm ni strati on. Al t hough he could see safeguards so students
aren't viewed as revenue sources, he suggested this is nore of
an opportunity to "put sizes and needs together, rather than
trying to take over another district."”

2:21:49 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked about financial inplications.

MR. JEANS answered that DEED hadn't analyzed it for financia
I npact . Regarding the issue raised by M. Keller about cost
differentials and the dollars following the students, M. Jeans
offered the belief that it's being achieved already by providing
funding to the schools and districts that are serving the
chi | dren. In further response, he said there may not be any
cost inplications.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2006



2:23:56 PM

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards (AASB), testified that AASB has no formal position on the
bill because all the inplications aren't known. Addr essi ng
possibilities, he pointed out that those wanting to do a charter
school mght seek other sponsors; thus the bill could be far-
reachi ng. M. Rose offered his understanding that the bill
intends to restate the latitude already possessed by districts.
As for financial inplications, he pondered whether going to a
district with another cost differential mght affect costs.

2:27: 08 PM

LEE YOUNG Principal, Connections, Kenai Peninsula Borough
Schools, infornmed nenbers that Connections is a honme school
program He requested clarification as to whether the bill's
focus is distance delivery, for renote students especially, or
is to perhaps shape core school districts. He predicted
financial benefits if school districts can go outside their
boundaries; he also believes his program is better off because
of the conpetition. M. Young suggested if there were a way to
rate districts for doing a good job, then perhaps charter
schools wouldn't be allowed to set up new brick-and-nortar
school s. He asked about ways to craft the legislation to avoid
having new brick-and-nortar schools draw students from the old
school prograns, thereby watering them down. He asked nenbers
to continue to analyze this and do good worKk.

CHAI R DYSON asked whet her anyone el se wi shed to testify.
2:30: 23 PM

CHAI R DYSON announced SB 281 woul d be held over.
#

N #SB199
SSSB 199- SCHOOL NUTRI TI ON SUPPCORT GRANTS

CHAI R DYSON announced SSSB 199 to be up for consideration.
2:31: 02 PM
SENATOR ELTON, sponsor, pointed out that the fiscal note is

wong and should predict a cost of $843,000 each year, rather
than for one year. He explained that SSSB 199 provides an

SENATE HES COW TTEE -9- March 1, 2006



option for school districts to receive a $4-per-student bonus if
they sell healthful food in the schools, as set forth in the
bill. It doesn't affect the cap, and is neant to provide an
incentive and be part of a solution to obesity and other health
i ssues. It applies to food sold in vending nachines, in
cafeterias or at student-run fundraisers, but doesn't cover food
that isn't sold, such as pizza at a class party. Furt her nore,
it doesn't cover food funded under the federal school |unch and
nutrition program

He acknow edged that food sales at schools support ancillary
progranms and clubs, but disputed the assunption that sales would
drop if foods weren't sugar-rich; he indicated a decline in
sales likely would happen the first year only, followed by a
recovery. Additionally, Senator Elton surmsed that adding $4
per student to the budgets of districts that choose this option
may add an increnental anmount of noney to the school activity
f unds. Thus the bill provides for healthful food and supports
student activities, wth the goal of a healthier student
popul ati on.

He reported that the sponsor substitute reflects changes
suggested by the nunerous school districts and organizations
that reviewed the bill after its introduction. For exanpl e,

rural school districts had expressed concern that traditional

foods would be precluded; the bill was changed so those aren't
i npl i cat ed. Senator Elton noted differences of opinion on
whet her certain foods are healthful; for exanple, whole mlk is
al l oned because sone people in the health field suggest the
benefits of calcium outweigh other issues, though some in the
schools feel otherw se. Hi ghlighting the basic nature of the
"recipes" in the bill, which don't prevent the departnents from
devel oping stricter ones, Senator Elton brought attention to
letters of support in the commttee packets, saying additiona

letters had been received as well.

2:38:39 PM

CHAIR DYSON referred to page 2, line 9, which begins, "(B)
depict only physical activity". He asked what that neans.

SENATOR ELTON replied that it reflects picking and choosing
anong what other states have done. Several states have used the
idea that a school vending machine should depict a healthful
f ood. The intent is that advertising on the front shouldn't
underm ne what is actually offered in the nmachi ne.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 10- March 1, 2006



2:39:45 PM

JESSE Kl EHL, Staff to Senator Kim Elton, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, added that along wth paragraph (O, t he
aforementioned phrase refers to what is depicted on vending
machines in schools in a district that chooses to apply for the
grant. Rat her than having a scantily clad individual eating
pork rinds, for instance, the imges would depict physical
activity or foods and beverages all owabl e under the bill.

SENATOR ELTON suggested a nore likely inmage would be soneone
drinking a col a.

CHAI R DYSON pointed out that soneone could be shown snoking a
cigarette or performng another activity not seen as desirable.
He suggested the sponsor mght want to consider this.

2:41:28 PM

SENATOR GREEN asked about <calculations for the fiscal note,
whi ch wasn't in commttee packets.

SENATOR ELTON suggested those who wote the fiscal note could
answer better. He remarked that sone districts have initiated
progranms that likely would qualify under the bill, but w thout
the incentive. He reiterated that the fiscal note he'd received
was in error because it assigned a one-year cost.

MR. KIEHL affirmed he had a copy. He related his understanding
that the fiscal note assuned every district would participate in
the first year, as shown on an attached spreadsheet show ng al
53 districts.

CHAI R DYSON noted that Eddy Jeans, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED), had nodded his assent. Chair Dyson
asked whether Senator Elton had done research on the costs of
dental disease and other inplications on public budgets when
peopl e have unheal t hful diets.

SENATOR ELTON revealed he'd opted not to provide an overview
that ranged "from scary to horrific." He reported that close to
25 percent of the Al askan population is classified as obese,
much higher than in recent years. There are many causes; this
bill isn't the silver bullet to solve them all. However,
i ncreased health problens correlate with obesity or poor eating
habits, including diabetes and dental health problens. Wi | e
DEED coul d prepare its fiscal note by applying an upper limt of

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- March 1, 2006



$4 across all the districts, Senator Elton pointed out that it
doesn't address hypothetical costs such as those for bad health
habits that begin at an early age, or savings from good health
habi ts over tine.

CHAI R DYSON suggested statistics mght be available for public
noney paid for nonpreventative dental care for K-12 chil dren.

2:47:50 PM
CHAI R DYSON opened public testinony.

DAVE JONES, Director of Finance, Kodiak Island Borough School
District, explained that his district has been |ooking at this
i ssue. He cited his high school as a good exanple: it has
vendi ng machines and on-site sales that generate a significant
anount of noney to fund activities and to allow students to
partici pate who otherwi se would be unable to. Many of the itens

currently sold are not nutritional. M. Jones predicted that
adopting this new policy would result in a large drop in funding
and thus a drop in physical activity. However, part of the
reason he'd support this bill is because the revenue won't
repl ace what is being raised already, but will help.

He infornmed nenbers that his only concern relates to sales in
el enentary school s. He gave an exanple of a local school used
for community activities. During the day, the soda machine is
shut down, but it works in the off hours; the noney is used for
student field trips and so forth. M. Jones enphasized ensuring
that the bill doesn't elimnate nore than is desired.

SENATOR ELTON suggested the aforenentioned nachine would be

protected in two ways. First, the bill only relates to sales of
food from one hour before school until one hour after. Because
of concerns from rural communities with K-12 students in the
same building, the bill ensures that the presence of elenentary

students in the building doesn't preclude having a vending
machi ne. He added that teachers and school adm nistrators woul d
be expected to try to control the purchasing behavior of
el enentary students by posting and enforcing signs on the
machi nes, for exanple.

CHAI R DYSON asked how many students are in the school district.

MR. JONES replied about 2, 736.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- March 1, 2006



CHAI R DYSON noted that $4 per student would be about $11, 000.
He asked how nuch profit is netted fromthe vendi ng machi nes.

MR. JONES answered about $17,000 a year. There are sales beyond
t hat . observing that the bill relates to the adjusted ADM he
said he'd been figuring about $16,000 to $18,000. He added that
t he booster club's norning sales of coffee and donuts contribute
nore than the vendi ng machi nes.

2:54: 20 PM

SUZANNE  MEUNI ER, Di rector of Advocacy, Aneri can Hear t
Association (AHA), stated support for the bill. Not i ng that
obesity is a cause of cardiovascular disease - Al aska's |eading
cause of death - as well as high blood pressure, elevated

chol esterol and diabetes, she predicted that preventing obesity
through good nutrition and physical education would help to
significantly reduce these Kkillers. Mentioning research
directly linking good nutrition and the ability to |earn, play,
grow and devel op, M. Meunier said well-nourished children have
hi gher test scores, better attendance and fewer behavioral
problens. She noted currently there is little guidance for food
sold outside the federal school neals program she suggested the

school envi r onnent shoul d rei nforce classroom nutrition
educati on. On behalf of AHA, she respectfully wurged the
conmmittee to nove the bill forward.

2:56: 41 PM

TAMW CGREEN, Section Chief, Chronic D sease Prevention and
Health Pronotion, D vision of Public Health, Departnment of
Heal th and Social Services (DHSS), spoke in support of efforts
to increase nutritional content in the schools, particularly in
relation to vending machines. She nentioned working wth
schools and parents to increase the health of children, noting
that obesity is a problem projected to grow over the next
several years. However, this is an education bill. Ms. G een
i ndi cated DHSS woul d defer to DEED s | ead and would support its
decisions in any way possible if this were to becone | aw.

SENATOR ELTON asked if the figures are correct.
MS. GREEN replied they are correct.

2:58: 59 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 13- March 1, 2006



PEGGY COWAN, Superintendent, Juneau Borough Schools, spoke in
support of SSSB 199, noting that her school district is focusing
on health this year. She highlighted the common interest of
decreasing obesity and increasing activity. Al t hough she
couldn't predict an exact nonetory anmount and agreed wth
previ ous speakers that this would be | owballing current revenues
from vendi ng nmachi nes and ot her sales, Ms. Cowan said this would
be an incentive to inplenent such a program She pointed out
that the Juneau school district funding goes not only to student
activities, but also to itens |ike classroom conputers.

She reported that one local mddle school switched to nore
heal t hful snacks at lunchtinme this year, resulting in a dramatic
decrease in sales; she expressed hope that Senator Elton's
prediction that sales would decline only in the first year would
hol d true. Ms. Cowan expressed appreciation for |eadership at
the state level to pronote health and partnering with the school
districts to do so.

She recomended one change: link the definition of "mnimal
nutritional value” wth the federal definition. Noting the
bill's definition is nore rigorous, M. Cowan pointed out the

probl ems for school districts struggling to keep up with federal
definitions and then having new state definitions as well.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether the federal standard nentions denta
heal t h.

M5. COVNEN pointed out that experts from DEED were present. She
of fered her understanding that the federal standards relate to
nutritional cont ent and preparation nethods for various
beverages and foods, rather than particul ar health standards.

CHAIR DYSON recalled attending a sem nar about the effects of
sugar and carbonic acid on the enanel of immature teeth.

M5. CONEN said she hadn't belabored the statistics except to
acknowl edge that Juneau unfortunately shares them but added
that carbonated beverages aren't good for bones either. I n
further response, she estimated the school district's take from
food sales to be about $8 to $10 a head, for about 5,000
st udent s.

CHAIR DYSON asked whether the district receives $40,000 to
$50, 000 net inconme, then, from food sal es.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- March 1, 2006



M5. COVEN replied, "At l|east." She related her understanding
that, according to M. Jeans, this new program would provide
about $30, 000.

3:05:12 PM

SENATOR ELTON suggested a conplete correlation is difficult. A
bake sale in conjunction with a basketball game wouldn't be
covered by this bill, for exanple, if it happened nore than an
hour past the end of the school day - which is the usual case.

M5. COWNEN agreed, surmising that nost vending mnachine sales
happen when there are comunity - rather than school district -
activities. She again expressed appreciation for a financial
incentive for doing what the districts should be doing.

3:06: 21 PM

CHAI R DYSON cal | ed upon Stacy Goade and Barbara Thonpson of DEED
to answer questions.

BARBARA THOWSQN, Director, Teaching and Learning Support,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent, explained that
Ms. Coade is the admnistrator for all the child nutrition
progr amns.

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Goude what she thinks about the pressure
school districts are under when soneone from a conpany cones to
a school and proposes renting floor space in return for noney.

STACY (GOADE, School Food Coordinator, Teaching and Learning
Support, Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnment, affirned
this happens. She said behind the bill is the "local wellness”
law that came with the Child Nutrition [and WC] Reauthorization
Act of 2004. The national school Iunch program now requires
participating school districts to have a local school wellness
policy. Thus the commi ssioner's office and her office have
worked with school districts this year and partnered with the
Al aska Association of School Boards (AASB) and Tamy G een's
staff at DHSS to develop a sanple policy for school boards to
use; it's a tenplate, not a requirenent.

She noted this is a confusing tinme for school districts, since
the local policy has slightly different "nutrition standards,"”
whi ch she suggested is a better term than "foods of m ninal
nutritional value."

SENATE HES COW TTEE -15- March 1, 2006



CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Goude what she would have school districts
do, if she had her preference.

M5. GOUDE said she couldn't answer, but understood all the
underlying issues. They're short on funding, she concl uded.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether the federal definition is |ooser
with respect to the definition of good food and beverages.

M5. GOUDE affirmed it's much less rigorous; it helps nostly with
items such as |licorice, marshmallows and other sugar-I|aden
f oods. She suggested the "food and beverage standards” in the
bill are mnmuch nore rigorous than the "foods of mnina
nutritional value" under the federal law for child nutrition
progr ans. In response to Senator Elton, she specified that she
believed the term not the standards, should be changed. She
noted that in working with districts, there are three different
definitions of foods, which is confusing.

SENATOR ELTON announced he would consult with Ms. Goude on the
af orenenti oned | anguage. He indicated it had been decided that
the federal standards are weak.

M5. GOUDE said "foods of mninmal nutritional value" is a
specific category defined in federal |aw. In response to Chair
Dyson, she indicated schools have dealt wth perhaps 20 new
changes under the school lunch program since the 2004 federa

Act . She listed five conponents for school boards: 1) devel op
a policy to increase physical activity in schools; 2) address
and increase nutrition education; 3) deal with all the foods
outside the national school Ilunch program which has its own
nutrition standards; 4) address other health-related issues; and
5) have a team inplenent it and nonitor it.

CHAIR DYSON asked what is required with respect to foods
avai l able in the school s.

M5. GOUDE answered that they're required to develop a policy;
then the superintendents would develop the admnistrative
regul ati ons under the school board policy to address all foods
outside of the federally funded national school |unch program -
a la carte foods and itens from food stores, norning sales and
vending machines. |It's a local policy, for the school districts
thenselves to determne - the federal governnent has been
specific about that - and the policy is developed with a group
that represents the community and the schools. In further
response, Ms. Goude said there definitely S par ent

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 16- March 1, 2006



comuni cation involvenment in this policy developnent, at each
school site.

CHAI R DYSON asked whet her, when the process is conpleted, there
is a requirement that parents be informed of the policy.

M5. GOADE said yes, there needs to be communication with the
parents.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether it has to neet any standard.

M5. GOADE answered that they don't have to neet any specific
standard, but the aforementioned board policy was devel oped with
the AASB and two state agencies to conplete a tenplate to help
t hem begi n sonmewhere. The sanple policy is nmuch nore rigorous
than the "foods of mnimal nutritional value," she added.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether there is any way to audit how well the
goal s are acconpli shed.

M5. GOADE answered that part of the state agency adm nistrative
responsibility for the child nutrition prograns is to review

t hem next year as they begin to be inplenented. They need to
have these policies July 1. Next school year the policies wll

be developed, and then it wIll be seen what is actually
i npl enented in these schools. "W wll report back to the feds

on what our state has done wth Jlocal wellness policy
devel opnent , " she added.

CHAI R DYSON asked what happens if the policy is to continue to
sell food that rots children's teeth because of the noney
gener at ed.

M5. GOADE indicated the departnment does a federal on-site
review, |ooks to see what the policy is, and reports back to the
federal governnent that there is a policy in place. She not ed
that the federal guidance to the state agencies is not to be
subj ective or to personally evaluate the |ocal policy.

CHAI R DYSON surnised the federal government wouldn't do anything
about it either.

M5. GOADE replied that it will be deternmined at a later date
She observed that the practice has been to inplenent such
prograns and then see what the states report back. She noted it
was the federal governnent that inplenmented the |ocal wellness
policy, because sales from vending machines and outside food

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- March 1, 2006



sales were inpacting the federally funded school food program -
to extinction in sone places.

3:16: 24 PM

SENATOR GREEN suggested a far greater problem is that many
school | unch prograns provide food that isn't any nore
nutritional than what comes from a vendi ng machine, and isn't as
tasty.

M5. GOUDE noted the federal governnment will be ranping up its
"school nmneal initiative standards" and the comodity program for
foods used by school districts to be nore in line with the
dietary guidelines for Anericans. Thus she suggested the
federal governnment sees the need to strengthen those areas.

3:17: 33 PM

SENATOR ELTON announced he probably would bring an anendnent to
the next hearing after working with M. Goude. He estimated
sales in Alaska from vending machines, a la carte sales and
student store sales to be about $1.5 million. At $4 a student,
the bill would recover about $843, 000. Senator Elton said he
woul dn’t object to raising the limt to $7, which would provide
nore incentive; he encouraged other nenbers to offer such an
anmendnent if they believed this to be a good and workabl e i dea.

SSSB 199 was hel d over.
#

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee nmeeting at 3:18:40 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 1, 2006



